U.S. DISTRICT COURT

O R % G l N A L NORTHERN DF‘;SJE%CT OF TEXAS

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT |COURT N 23m
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS ‘
FORT WORTH DIVISION

CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT
Y

TED HARDING, ITI
DEPUTY

VS. CIVIL ACTION NO.4:04-CV-524-Y

W W W W

ANN H. REGENT

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO DISMISS

Pending before the Court is defendant Ann H. Regent’s Rule
12 (b) (6) Motion to Dismiss [doc. # 4-1], filed August 9, 2004.
Having carefully reviewed the motion, response, and reply, the
Court finds that the motion should be DENIED.

Regent is an individual engaged in the business of collecting
consumer debts. Regent filed suit in state court against plaintiff
Ted Harding, II for a debt Harding allegedly owed non-party
Citibank. Harding answered that suit through counsel on March 1,
2004. A copy of Harding’s answer was served upon Regent via
receipted facsimile transmission; a transaction report shows
Harding’s answer was received at 5:43 p.m. on March 1. Thereafter,
Harding received the following communications at his home by or on
behalf of Regent: (1) on March 11, a collection letter from Regent
that was dated March 6 and postmarked on March 9; (2) on April 1,
discovery responses and a certificate of written discovery on
Harding dated March 29; (3) on April 28, a voice message from Benny
Cole, an employee or agent of Regent; (4) on June 14, a voice

message from Tanya Cole, an employee or agent of Regent; (5) on or



about June 17, a collection letter from Regent dated June 14 and
postmarked June 15; and (6) on June 21, a letter dated June 18
informing Harding that Regent would, pursuant to Harding’s request,
cease further communications with Harding and also notifying
Harding that, unless Harding disputed the wvalidity of the debt
within 30 days of the letter’s date, the debt would be assumed
valid. On July 14, Harding filed suit in this Court, asserting the
following claims: (1) violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692c(a) (2); (2)
violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692d; (3) violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f;
(4) violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e, § 1692e(2)(a), § 1692e(5),
1692e(10); (5) violation of Texas Finance Code § 392.301(a) (8); and
(6) violation of Texas Finance Code § 392.304(a) (8). On August 9,
Regent moved for dismissal of Harding’s claims for failure to state
a claim upon which relief could be granted.

"[A] motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim is viewed
with disfavor and is rarely granted."” Kaiser Aluminum & Chem.
Sales v. Avondale Shipyards, Inc., 677 F.2d 1045, 1050 (5th Cir.
1982), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 1105 (1983) (quoting Wright & Miller,
Federal Practice and Procedure § 1357 (1969)). The court must
accept as true all well pleaded, non-conclusory allegations in the
complaint, and must liberally construe the complaint in favor of
the plaintiff. See Kaiser Aluminum, 677 F.2d at 1050. However,
conclusory allegations, unwarranted deductions of fact, or “legal

conclusions masquerading as factual conclusions will not suffice to



prevent [the granting of] a motion to dismiss.” Fernandez-Montes
v. Allied Pilots Ass’n, 987 F.2d 278, 284 (5% Cir. 1993); see
Spiller v. City of Texas City, Police Dept., 130 F.3d 162, 167 (5%
Cir. 1997); Associated Builders, Inc. v. Alabama Power Co., 505
F.2d 97, 100 (5% Cir. 1974). ™“Dismissal is proper if the complaint
lacks an allegation regarding a required element necessary to
obtain relief.” Blackburn v. City of Marshall, 42 F.3d 925, 930
(5" Cir. 1995). A court should not dismiss a complaint for failure
to state a claim unless it appears beyond doubt from the face of
the plaintiff’s pleadings that he can prove no set of facts in
support of his claim that would entitle him to relief. See Hishon
v. King & Spalding, 467 U.S. 69, 73 (1984); Garrett v. Commonwealth
Mortgage Corp., 938 F.2d 592, 594 (5 Cir. 1991); Kaiser Aluminum,
677 F.2d at 1050.

Title 15 U.S.C. § 1692c(a) (2) provides:

Without the prior consent of the consumer given directly

to the debt collector or the express permission of a

court of competent jurisdiction, a debt collector may not

communicate with a consumer 1in connection with the

collection of any debt--if the debt collector knows the

consumer is represented by an attorney with respect to

such debt and has knowledge of, or can readily ascertain,

such attorney’s name and address...
15 U.S.C. § 1692c(a) (2) (2004). Regent argues that a claim
pursuant to § 1692c(a) (2) requires the debtor to plead facts
showing the debt collector’s actual knowledge that the debtor 1is
represented by counsel. Regent further argues that “Harding has

not and cannot allege a single fact constituting actual knowledge
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